
 

Employees' Consultative Forum 

(Special) AGENDA 

 
 

DATE: 

 

Tuesday 12 December 2017 

 

TIME: 

 

7.30 pm 

 

VENUE: 

 

Committee Rooms 1 & 2,  Harrow Civic Centre, 

Station Road, Harrow, HA1 2XY 

 

PRE-MEETINGS: [Council Side - 7.00 pm - Committee Rooms  1&2 

Employees’ Side - 6.30 pm - Committee Room 3] 

 
 

  MEMBERSHIP (Quorum:  3 from the Council Side and 2 trade union 

representatives from different trade unions) 

   

  Chair: 

 

Councillor Kiran Ramchandani 

 

  Councillors: 

 
Ms Pamela Fitzpatrick 
Graham Henson 
Sachin Shah 

 

Mrs Camilla Bath 
Ms Mina Parmar 
Pritesh Patel 
 

 
 

 

Employee Representatives: 

   
Teachers Representatives: Louise Crimmins 

Anne Lyons 
(1 vacancy) 

- National Union of Teachers 
- National Association of Head Teachers 

 
Representatives of UNISON: Mr D Butterfield 

Mr G Martin 
 

Mr D Searles 
 

Representatives of GMB: 
 

Ms P Belgrave 
 

 

(Reserve Council Side Members overleaf) 

 



Employees' Consultative Forum - 12 December 2017 2 

 
 

Reserve Council Side Members: 

 
1. Maxine Henson 
2. Barry Kendler 
3. David Perry 
4. Aneka Shah-Levy 
 

1. Susan Hall 
2. John Hinkley 
3. Paul Osborn 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Contact:  Democratic Services Officer 

Tel:  020 8424 1323   E-mail:  manize.talukdar@harrow.gov.uk 
 



Employees' Consultative Forum - 12 December 2017 3 

Useful Information 

 

 
Meeting details: 
 
This meeting is open to the press and public.   
 
Directions to the Civic Centre can be found at: 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/site/scripts/location.php.  
 
 

Filming / recording of meetings 
 
The Council will audio record Public and Councillor Questions.  The audio recording will be 
placed on the Council’s website. 
 
Please note that proceedings at this meeting may be photographed, recorded or filmed.  If 
you choose to attend, you will be deemed to have consented to being photographed, 
recorded and/or filmed.  
 
When present in the meeting room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices. 
 
 

Meeting access / special requirements.  
 
The Civic Centre is accessible to people with special needs.  There are accessible toilets 
and lifts to meeting rooms.  If you have special requirements, please contact the officer 
listed on the front page of this agenda. 
 
An induction loop system for people with hearing difficulties is available.  Please ask at the 
Security Desk on the Middlesex Floor.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda publication date:  Monday 4 December 2017 
 

http://www.harrow.gov.uk/site/scripts/location.php


Employees' Consultative Forum - 12 December 2017 4 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising 

from business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Forum; 
(b) all other Members present. 
 

3. APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR    
 
 To appoint a Vice-Chair from the Union side for the 2017/18 Municipal Year. 

 
4. MINUTES   (Pages 7 - 10) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 8 February 2017 be taken as read and 

signed as a correct record. 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 48 

(Part 4D of the Constitution). 
 

6. ANNUAL EQUALITY IN EMPLOYMENT MONITORING REPORT FOR 1 APRIL 
2016 - 31 MARCH 2017   (Pages 11 - 50) 

 
 Report of the Interim Head of Employee and Customer Relations. 

 
7. NON COMPLIANCE OF STATUTORY RESPONSIBILITIES, FAILURE TO 

ENGAGE IN THE  ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE   (Pages 51 
- 164) 

 
 Report from the Harrow Unison LG Branch. 

 
8. MANAGEMENT RESPONSE: NON COMPLIANCE OF STATUTORY 

RESPONSIBILITIES, FAILURE TO ENGAGE IN THE  ENVIRONMENT & 
COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE   (Pages 165 - 170) 



Employees' Consultative Forum - 12 December 2017 5 

 
 Report of the Corporate Director, Community. 

 
9. HARROW UNISON LG BRANCH REPORT ON UNILATERAL CHANGES TO 

ROLE PROFILES & THE UNDERMINING OF THE RECOGNITION AGREEMENT   
(Pages 171 - 178) 

 
 Report from the Harrow Unison LG Branch. 

 
10. MANAGEMENT RESPONSE: HARROW UNISON LG BRANCH REPORT ON 

UNILATERAL CHANGES TO ROLE PROFILES & THE UNDERMINING OF THE 
RECOGNITION AGREEMENT   (Pages 179 - 186) 

 
 Report of the Corporate Director, Resources and Commercial. 

 
11. FAILURE IN THE HOUSING DIRECTORATE SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM   

(Pages 187 - 198) 
 
 Report from the Harrow Unison LG Branch. 

 
12. MANAGEMENT RESPONSE: FAILURE IN THE HOUSING DIRECTORATE 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM   (Pages 199 - 202) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director, Community. 

 
13. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS & PUBLIC    
 
 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS & PUBLIC   

To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items 
of business, on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of confidential 
information in breach of an obligation of confidence, or of exempt information as defined in 
Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972: 
  

Agenda 
Item No 
 

Title Description of Exempt Information 

14.  Appendix 1 - Non 
compliance of Statutory 
Responsibilities, Failure 
to engage in the  
Environment & 
Communities 
Directorate 

Information under paragraph 3 of Part I 
of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972, relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority 
holding that information) 

 
 

 

 AGENDA - PART II   
 

14. NON COMPLIANCE OF STATUTORY RESPONSIBILITIES, FAILURE TO 
ENGAGE IN THE  ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE   (Pages 
203 - 204) 

 
 Report from the Harrow Unison LG Branch. 



Employees' Consultative Forum - 12 December 2017 6 

 
 * DATA PROTECTION ACT NOTICE   
 The Council will audio record item 6 (Public Questions) and will place the audio recording on the 

Council’s website, which will be accessible to all. 
 
[Note:  The questions and answers will not be reproduced in the minutes.] 
 

 



 

 Employees' Consultative Forum - 8 February 2017 - 26 - 

 
 
 

EMPLOYEES' CONSULTATIVE FORUM 

MINUTES 

 

8 FEBRUARY 2017 

 
 
Chair: * Mr G Martin 
   
Councillors: * Mrs Camilla Bath (2) 

* Graham Henson 
* Ms Mina Parmar 
* Pritesh Patel 
 

* Kiran Ramchandani 
* Aneka Shah-Levy 
* Sachin Shah 
 

Teacher  * Ms L Crimmins - NUT 
 * Ms A Lyons - NAHT 
 
Unison 
Representatives: 
 

  Mr D Butterfield 
* Mr S Compton 
 

* Mr J Royle 
* Mr D Searles 
 

GMB 
Representative: 
 

* Ms P Belgrave 
 

 
 

* Denotes Member present 
(2) Denotes category of Reserve Member 
 
 

35. Attendance by Reserve Members   
 
RESOLVED:  To note the attendance at this meeting of the following duly 
appointed Reserve Member:- 
 
Ordinary Member  
 

Reserve Member 
 

Councillor Paul Osborn Councillor Mrs Camilla Bath 
 
 

7

Agenda Item 4
Pages 7 to 10



 

- 27 -  Employees' Consultative Forum - 8 February 2017 

36. Declarations of Interest   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that the following interests were declared: 
 
Agenda Item 7 – Appeals Process when dealing with complaints relating to 
Corporate Directors – Natural Justice a basic fundamental right and Agenda 
Item 8 – Management response to Unison Report 
Councillor Graham Henson declared a non-pecuniary interest in that he was 
an honorary member of the CWU, a former member of Unison, a member of 
the GMB Union and his cousin was an employee of the Council.  He would 
remain in the room whilst the matter was considered and voted upon. 
 
Councillor Kiran Ramchandani declared a non-pecuniary interest in that she 
was a member of the GMB Union.  She would remain in the room whilst the 
matter was considered and voted upon. 
 
Councillor Sachin Shah declared a non-pecuniary interest in that he was a 
member of the Unite Union.  He would remain in the room whilst the matter 
was considered and voted upon. 
 

37. Minute Silence   
 
The Forum stood and observed a minute silence for the late Councillor Bob 
Currie, a former Mayor of Harrow, who had been a member of the Forum and 
a lifelong member of Unison. 
 

38. Minutes   
 
RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 November 2016 be 
taken as read and signed as a correct record subject to the following 
correction: 
 
Minute 26 – Appointment of Employees’ Side Representatives 
 
… Anne Lyons as the representative of the NAHT. 
 

39. Petitions   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that no petitions were received at this meeting under 
the provisions of the Executive Procedure Rule 49 (Part 4D of the 
Constitution). 
 

40. Deputations   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that no deputations were received at this meeting 
under the provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 48 (Part 4D of the 
Constitution). 
 

41. Public Questions   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that no public questions were received. 
 

8



 

Employees' Consultative Forum - 8 February 2017 - 28 - 

RESOLVED ITEMS   
 

42. Appeals Process when dealing with Complaints relating to Corporate 
Directors - Natural Justice a Basic Fundamental Right   
 
The Forum received a submission from the Employees’ side in relation to the 
appeals process when dealing with complaints about Corporate Directors 
(Agenda Item 7) and considered it in conjunction with a response report from 
the Corporate Director, Resources and Commercial (Agenda Item 8). 
 
A representative from the Employees’ Side expressed the view that whilst 
stage 2 grievances in relation to a Corporate Director should be heard by the 
Chief Executive with the acknowledgment that this may be delegated due to 
his schedule, it was not acceptable that grievance appeals be heard by a 
Corporate Director.  It was therefore proposed that such appeals be heard a 
panel of elected Members.  The representative stated that this would 
demonstrate fairness and that no bias existed amongst the Corporate 
Directors.  Another representative of the Employees’ side added that there 
was an issue of perception and Corporate Directors ‘looked after each other’. 
 
The Head of People and Organisational Development outlined Management’s 
response to the paper submitted by Unison and stated that the normal 
practice in an organisation was that appeals would be heard by the next level 
of officer in terms of seniority.  She stated that Management was prepared to 
accommodate Unison’s request in that the Chief Executive had agreed to 
hear appeals against the findings of a grievance hearing against a Corporate 
Director. Grievances against a Corporate Director would continue to be heard 
by another Corporate Director in line with current practice.  In response to the 
representative of the Employees’ Side comments she stated that, in her 
experience, Corporate Directors viewed the matter of grievances seriously 
and were supported in hearings by a representative from both Human 
Resources and Legal who were on hand to provide advice. 
 
In response to a question from an Employees’ Side representative, the Head 
of People and Organisational Development advised that her records showed 
that the last grievance against a Corporate Director was in 2014 and that it 
was not upheld.  An Employees’ Side representative stated that this year one 
grievance against a Corporate Director had not been heard and that two 
heard in the previous year were not upheld.  One hearing was held with out 
the employee’s representative being present.  This was challenged by the 
Head of People and Organisational Development who stated that she had 
been advised by the Corporate Director, Resources and Commercial, that he 
was not aware of any appeal where an employee’s representative had been 
prevented from attending. 
 
RESOLVED:  That  
 
(1) the paper submitted by Unison and the report of the Corporate 

Director, Resources and Commercial be noted; 
 

9



 

- 29 -  Employees' Consultative Forum - 8 February 2017 

(2) the Grievance Policy concerning complaints against Corporate 
Directors be discussed further at the CJC. 

 
43. Management Response to Unison Report   

 
This report was dealt with in conjunction with the previous item. 
 

44. Information Report: Draft Revenue Budget 2017/18 and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2017/18 to 2019/20   
 
The Forum received a report of the Director of Finance, which had been 
considered by Cabinet in December, on the draft revenue budget for 2017/18 
and draft Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)  for 2017/18 to 2019/20. 
 
The Forum did not make any comments on the proposals. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 

45. Information Report: Draft Capital Programme 2017/18 to 2019/20   
 
The Forum received a report of the Director of Finance which set out the new 
General Fund capital programmes which had been proposed as part of the 
2017/18 budget process.  The report, which had been considered by Cabinet 
in December, also set out budgets within the existing Capital Programme 
which had been re-profiled between 2016/17 and 2019/20 and where 
virements were proposed between projects. 
 
The Forum did not make any comments on the proposals. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 
(Note:  The meeting, having commenced at 7.32 pm, closed at 7.53 pm). 
 
 
 
 
 
(Signed) GARY MARTIN 
Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT EMPLOYEES’ CONSULTATIVE 

FOR: FORUM 

Date of 12 December  2017 

Meeting:  

Subject: INFORMATION REPORT 

 Annual Equality in Employment 

 Monitoring Report for 

 1 April 2016 - 31 March 2017 

Responsible John Kitching 

Officer: Head of Employee and Customer Relations 

 HR Shared Service 

Exempt: No 

Enclosures: 
 

 Appendix 1 Annual equalities report presentation 
Appendix 2 Supporting data tables by protected 
characteristic 

11

Agenda Item 6
Pages 11 to 50



Section 1 – Summary 

 

 

Section 2 - Report 

 

2.1. Introduction and format 

 
This report sets out information on Harrow Council’s performance on equalities and the impact 
of its policies and practices on its employees, to comply with the requirements of the Public 
Sector Equality Duty set out in the Equality Act 2010 and the Equality Act 2010 (Specific 
Duties) Regulations 2011. 

 
This report comprises of the employee diversity data summarised by protected characteristic, 
for the year ending 31 March 2017, and a brief analysis of the data which highlights key issues 
arising from the equalities data. 

 

Following feedback from stakeholders on the format of the report in previous years, it has 
been changed this year to be more engaging. It includes infographics to allow the data to be 
reviewed ‘at a glance’ and encourage readership of the report at all levels. 

 
The summary will be considered by the Corporate Equalities Group (CEG) and any issues 
identified from the analysis of the data will be addressed in the Corporate Equalities Action Plan. 

 
2.2. Content 

 
Appendix 1 of this report contains an overview of the workforce profile as at 31 March 2017 
across the services workforce excluding school employees (including information available from 
PerTemps on recruitment) analysed by protected characteristic. Comparisons of the workforce 
profile against previous years and the local community are made where available and 
appropriate and available in Appendix 2. This includes data for the whole council including 
schools for comparison. 

 
In addition, data is supplied for the complete year ending 31 March 2017 on redeployment rates 
and leavers by protected characteristics. 

 
In previous years, we have not reported on gender reassignment as the low number could 
easily identify individuals. This year, however, no employee has classified themselves under 
gender reassignment. 

This report sets out employee data, presented by protected characteristic, related to a 
range of employment matters. This report is collated and published annually to meet 
our statutory equality duty: 

 

Publication of the data is required by the Equalities Act 2010 (Specific Duties) 
regulations 2011. 

 

FOR INFORMATION 

12



2.3 Corporate Equalities Action Plan 

 
Recommendations to address the key issues highlighted by the analysis of the data will be 
considered by the Corporate Equalities Group for inclusion in the Corporate Action Plan. 

This report and the comments of the Forum will be considered at the Corporate Equalities 

Group, which includes representation from external partners, trade unions and employees from 

the Making a Difference Group. 

 

2.4 Monitoring and Review 
 

Equalities in employment monitoring information and delivery of the Equalities Action Plan will 
be monitored by the Corporate Equalities Group. 

 
2.5 Summary 

 
Priorities established last year by the Corporate Equalities Group were: (and actions delivered 
against them) 

 

Priority Achievements 

Achieve a more comprehensive profile of 

the workforce by improving the reporting 

and recording of protected 

characteristics, particularly disability and 

sexual orientation 

Undertook a communication campaign 

including CEO Newsletter, staff 

updates and posters to encourage 

staff to update their social identity 

information. This has led to a slight 

increase in data provided. 

An increased percentage of BAME and 

disabled staff at senior pay bands 

Target recruitment briefs have been 

issued to resourcing companies 

supporting with senior management 

recruitment. 

Coaching and mentoring programmes 

have been initiated and staff from the 

BAME and those with disabilities have 

been encouraged to enroll on these. 

An increase in the recruitment and 

retention of young people 

We have now delivered our target to 

support 500 young people into jobs 

and apprenticeships. 

Apprenticeship fair on 30th June 2017 

was very well attended, with over 200 

young people and 15 exhibitors. 

Maintain or improve our position in 

Stonewalls Workplace Index, (current 

ranking 153, up from 399 the previous 

year) 

We have submitted against the WEI in 

August this year and await the results 

in Jan 2018. 

13



Section 3 - Further Information 

No further information. 
 

 
Section 4 - Financial Implications 

There are no financial implications relating to this report. 

 
Section 5 - Equalities implications 

None. This information report sets out information captured on equality in employment. 

 
Section 6 - Corporate Priorities 

The report relates to employment for Council employees and as such supports delivery of all 
corporate priorities. 

 

 

 
Name: Dawn Calvert 

 
 

x 

 

 
Chief Financial Officer 

 

Date: 16/11/17 

  

 

Section 7 - Contact Details and Background Papers 

Contact: Samantha Reilly, HR Business Partner - HR Shared Service 

Samantha.reilly@harrow.gov.uk 

 

 
  
 

14

mailto:Samantha.reilly@harrow.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15



This page is intentionally left blank



Annual Equality in Employment 

Monitoring Report 
2016 – 2017 17



Introduction 

n 

Harrow prides itself in being one of the most ethnically and religiously diverse boroughs in the country 

with people of many different backgrounds and life experiences living side by side. It is the richness of 

this diversity, and the positive impact that it has on the borough and our community, that we believe helps 

make Harrow such a great place to live, work and visit.   

 

Our equalities vision is ‘A Proud, Fair & Cohesive Harrow, a Great Place to Live, Work & Visit’ and one of 

our strategic equality objectives is to develop ‘An inclusive workforce that feels valued, respected and 

reflects our community’. 

 

This report sets out information on Harrow Council’s performance on equalities and the impact of its 

policies and practices on its employees. It reviews the employment data to comply with the human 

resources requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty set out in the Equality Act 2010 and the 

Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties) Regulations 2011.  

 

The full report will be published separately. This report comprises of the employee equalities data 

summarised by protected characteristic, for the year ending 31 March 2017 and a brief analysis of the 

data which highlights key issues arising from the equalities data.  The summary will be considered by the 

Corporate Equalities Group (CEG) and any issues identified from the analysis of the data will be 

addressed in the 2018/19 Corporate Equalities Action Plan. 

 

Note: Tables with all equalities figures relating to 2016 – 17 broken down by Services and Harrow 

Council (including Schools) can be found as an appendix. 

18



Data Notes 

Workforce Profile Data 

This report provides a profile of Harrow Council’s non-schools workforce demographics. It also excludes contracted out 

services which are monitored elsewhere. The report brings together data taken from the council’s HR and payroll systems 

and job applicant diversity records for the period of 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017. 

 

Note: Tables with all equalities figures relating to 2016 – 17 broken down by Services and Harrow Council (including 

Schools) can be found as an appendix. 

 

The Workforce Profile is a snapshot of the workforce as at 31 March 2017, broken down by 7 of the 9 protected 

characteristics, by pay band and whether Full or Part-time. There is no requirement to report on Marital Status and the 

decision has been taken not to report on Gender Reassignment. This is due to the number being so low it could potentially 

identify employees. 

 

The report is based on headcount, therefore, an employee who holds jobs in more than one directorate will be counted 

only once in the whole council report, but will appear in each of the Directorate reports. In determining which job to count 

for the whole council report, the job with the highest number of working hours is used. 

 

Data Sources and Comparison with the Community 

Data used for comparison with the community was obtained from 2011 Census Briefing. Note 11: May 2013 - Gender, 

Age, Religion and Health, by Ethnic Group 2011 Census, Third Release (3.1). Gender and Age data has been updated in 

line with 2014 Mid-Year Estimates. 

 

Recruitment 

These figures cover recruitment for posts where processed by Pertemps. As Schools do not use Pertemps, data relating 

to their recruitment is not available in this report. 

19



Definition of Terms 

Applicants Number of applicants who applied for roles within Services 

Shortlisted Number of applicants who were shortlisted for roles within Services 

Appointed Number of applicants who were appointed to roles within Services 

Salary Bands Harrow Council pay scales grouped into bands  

Band 1 G1 to G3 

Band 2 G4 to G8 

Band 3 G9 to G11 

Band 4 MG1 – MG3 

Band 5 MG4 and D1 

Band 6 D2 and above 

BAME Includes Asian, Black, Mixed or any other minority ethnic group 

Working Pattern Employees that are either Full Time or Part Time 

LGBTQ+ Includes Lesbian, Gay Men, Bisexual, Trans, Questioning and Other 

20



Key Findings 

• The number of staff who have identified themselves as BAME  across the organisation has 

risen marginally. This still remains below the community census data we hold from 2011 but 

we do not know how this compares to the current community demographic 

 

• There has been a  rise in the % of staff declaring a disability 

 

• The % of our workforce which is female, is higher than the boroughs population 

 

• The number of ‘unknown’ has fallen against ethnicity, disability, religion or belief and sexual 

orientation.  This is due to the SAP system being updated mid way through the year which 

now allows to staff to log or update equality data themselves.  We continue to communicate 

this through the organisation and strive to improve the quality of diversity data 

 

• The % of staff declaring their sexual orientation remains  low at 35% 

 

• The % of staff declaring their religion or belief also remains  low at 39.38% 

 

• There is still a disproportionate amount of women and staff from BAME in the higher pay 

bands in comparison to the make-up of the workforce as a whole.  This continues to be an 

action on the annual equalities action plan  

21



Trends at a glance 

2014 2015 2016 2017

No of 

Employees
2192 2042 2028 2052 Increase in employees

32.53% 32.62% 30.82% 29.29%

45 - 54 45 - 54 45 - 54 45 - 54

Disability 3.10% 2.94% 2.91% 4.51%
Increase in employees declaring 

a disability

BAME 38.69% 40.16% 42.01% 42.54%
Increase in employees declaring 

BAME origin

Female 61.72% 61.51% 61.74% 61.45% Decrease in female employees

LGBTQ 0.50% 0.78% 0.98% 1.12% Increase in LGBTQ

Age Group
Highest % age group remains the 

same

Direction

22



Age of our workforce 

The average age in Council Services is: 

 47.5 

Our percentage employees aged 16 – 34 has 

increased since last year and now make up 

16.57% 

23



Disability  

4.53% 

44.25% 

51.22% 

Yes No Unknown

4.53% of the workforce have declared they 

have a disability. 

 

This increased by 1.62% from the 2016 

equalities report. 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

1 2 3 4 5 6

Disability by Salary Band 

Unknown

No

Yes

24



Work / Life Balance (Maternity) 

96employees were on maternity leave in 2016 – 17 

 

89% returned to their roles, however 5.88% left the organisation within 4 months 

94% 6% 

Stayed beyond 4 months

Left within 4 months

25



Ethnicity 

43% of the workforce identified themselves 

as BAME, a further breakdown is shown below: 

26



Religion or Belief 

39.38% of the workforce 

have declared their religious beliefs  We still do not know the religion or 

beliefs of 60% of the workforce 

and whilst this is significantly 

higher than the Community Data 

Census 2011 we have increased 

our understanding by 13% on 

last year’s data  

Note: The graphs relating to religion only shows a breakdown of those who have declared their religion or belief and excludes ‘unknown’ 

The percentages in the bar chart 

show the working patterns of 

employees by Religion 

27



Religion & Belief continued 

28



Gender 

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

1 2 3 4 5 6

Gender by Salary Band 

Male Female

The workforce by gender and 

their working patterns 

Full Time 

Part Time 

The Harrow Community Census 2011 stated 50.30% 

of our community were female, which means our 

workforce is currently has  11.15% higher female 

presence 

61.45% of the workforce are 

female.  

29



Sexual Orientation 

1.12% of our workforce  have declared themselves 

to be LGBTQ 

 

In 2016 – 17 Harrow Council were the most improved 

employer in Stonewalls Workplace Equality Index, moving 

from 439 to 153 

30



Recruitment and Leavers 

Disability  

There have been 2657 applicants for roles advertised with Harrow Services in 2016 – 2017 of which 

1.62% declared themselves as having a disability. 

 

This is has decreased since 2016 by 1.66% 
 

The percentage of candidates shortlisted and appointed have also decreased 

Leavers 

31



Recruitment and Leavers 
Gender 

Leavers 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Female Male Unknown

Applied 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

Female Male Unknown

Shortlisted 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Female Male Unknown

Appointed 

32



Recruitment and Leavers 
Ethnicity 

Leavers 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

BAME White Unknown

Applied 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

BAME White Unknown

Shortlisted 

33



Recruitment and Leavers 
Sexual Orientation 

Leavers 

34



 

 

 

 

 
  
 
 
  

Harrow Council Annual Equalities Report 
Supporting Employee Diversity Data Tables 
2016-17 
 

35



 

Appendix 1  
 

1. Workforce Profile as at 31 March 2017 

 

1.8 Race (Ethnicity) 

 Whole Council Excluding Schools Harrow 
Community 
data 2011 
Census 

2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017 

4,798 4,901 4,894 2,042 2,028 2,052 

Asian 27.34% 28.24% 29.14% 22.33% 23.37% 23.20% 42.59% 
Black 9.44% 9.83% 9.89% 15.03% 15.68% 15.59% 8.24% 
Mixed 2.33% 2.45% 2.76% 2.06% 2.07% 2.58% 3.97% 
Any other ethnic group 1.06% 1.10% 1.37% 0.73% 0.89% 1.17% 2.95% 
Total BAME 40.18% 41.62% 43.15% 40.16% 42.01% 42.54% 57.75% 
White 

52.17% 50.70% 49.47% 51.42% 49.41% 

 
49.07% 42.25% 

Unknown/Unclassified  

7.65% 7.67% 7.38% 8.42% 8.58% 

 
8.38% 0.00% 

 
 
 
1.2 Gender 

 Whole Council Excluding Schools Harrow 
Community 
data 2011 
Census 

2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017 

4,798 4,901 4,894 2,042 2,028 2,052 

Male  21.72% 21.98% 22.37% 38.05% 38.26% 38.55% 49.70% 
Female 78.28% 78.02% 77.61% 61.51% 61.74% 61.45% 50.30% 
 
 
 

1.3 Disability 

 Whole Council Excluding Schools Harrow 
Community 
data 2011 
Census 

2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017 

4,798 4,901 4,894 2,042 2,028 2,052 

Yes 1.44% 1.45% 2.19% 2.94% 2.91% 4.53% 

N/A 
No - 49.65% 54.88% - 37.97% 44.25% 

Prefer not to say - 0.10% 0.16% - 0.25% 0.34% 

Unknown - 48.60% 42.77% - 58.88% 50.88% 

 
*In the 2011 census, 16.4% of Harrow residents self-classified their health to be “not good”, which is 
not the same definition as the definition for disability. 
 
The option of “Prefer not to say” was introduced in mid-2016. 
 

1.8 Age 

 Whole Council Excluding Schools 

 2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017 

 4,798 4,901 4,894 2,042 2,028 2,052 

16 to 24 3.83% 4.28% 4.50% 1.37% 2.17% 2.68% 

25 to 34 17.22% 17.63% 17.63% 12.93% 13.71% 13.89% 

35 to 44 23.59% 23.30% 23.01% 21.89% 21.55% 21.83% 

45 to 54 31.20% 30.34% 29.36% 32.62% 30.82% 29.29% 

55 to 64 21.05% 21.16% 22.13% 26.25% 26.53% 26.85% 
65+ 3.11% 3.29% 3.35% 4.95% 5.23% 5.46% 

 36



 

 
 
 

1.8 Religion or Belief 

 Whole Council Excluding Schools Harrow 
Community 
data 2011 
Census 

2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017 

4,798 4,901 4,894 2,042 2,028 2,052 

Christianity 8.13% 8.37% 10.11% 11.41% 13.26% 18.52% 37.30% 

Hinduism 3.48% 3.59% 3.92% 4.31% 4.93% 5.95% 25.30% 

Islam 0.90% 1.14% 1.49% 1.37% 2.02% 3.02% 12.50% 

Judaism 0.35% 0.35% 0.41% 0.49% 0.49% 0.68% 4.40% 

Jainism 0.42% 0.41% 0.39% 0.44% 0.44% 0.49% 2.17% 

Sikh 0.35% 0.39% 0.55% 0.49% 0.64% 1.02% 1.20% 

Buddhism 0.17% 0.16% 0.16% 0.24% 0.25% 0.24% 1.10% 

Zoroastrian 0.02% 0.02% 0.02% 0.00% 00.00% - 0.07% 

Other 0.73% 0.69% 1.00% 0.98% 0.99% 1.85% 0.26% 

No religion/Atheist 1.71% 1.96% 3.58% 2.89% 3.70% 7.60% 9.60% 

Unknown 83.74% 82.92% 78.36% 77.38% 73.27% 60.62% 6.20% 

        
 

 

1.6 Sexual Orientation 

 Whole Council Excluding Schools 

2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017 

4,798 4,901 4,894 2,042 2,028 2,052 

Heterosexual 14.17% 15.34% 18.39% 20.47% 25.25% 33.87% 

Gay Woman/Lesbian 0.06% 0.06% 0.08% 0.10% 0.10% 0.15% 

Gay Man 0.17% 0.18% 0.18% 0.34% 0.44% 0.44% 

Bi-sexual 0.17% 0.18% 0.22% 0.34% 0.39% 0.49% 

Prefer not to say 1.00% 0.78% 0.92% 1.52% 1.04% 1.46% 

Other 0.04% 0.08% 0.08% 0% 0.05% 0.05% 

Unknown 84.39% 83.37% 80.12% 77.23% 72.73% 63.55% 

 
 

1.7 Pregnancy and Maternity 
 Whole Council Excluding Schools 

2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017 

4,798 4,901 4,894 2,042 2,028 2,052 

Employees have been 
pregnant or taken 
maternity leave in the           
2 years ending  on                  
31 March 2017 

3.69% 
(177) 

3.98% 
(195) 

4.31% 
(211) 

4.01% 
(82) 

3.70% 
(75) 

3.80% 
(78) 

 
 

 
 

1.8 Gender Reassignment 
 
 
In previous years, the decision was taken not to report on this protected characteristic as due 
to the low numbers involved, it may be possible to identify individuals.  As at 31 March 2017, 
no staff disclosed that they had or were undergoing gender reassignment. 
 
 
 

  
37



 

Appendix 2 
 

2. Workforce Profile by Pay Band and Protected Characteristic (including schools)  
(See Appendix 5 for information on the Council Pay bands) 
 

 

Pay band 
Whole 

Council 

Harrow 
Community 

Data                          
2011 

Census 1 2 3 4 5 6 
4,894 

      

Ethnicity  

BAME 50.50% 43.05% 37.75% 28.08% 22.34% 7.14% 43.15% 57.75% 

White 42.66% 50.55% 53.55% 60.25% 73.40% 71.43% 49.47% 42.25% 

Unknown 6.77% 6.40% 8.70% 11.67% 4.26% 21.43% 7.38% 0.00% 

Sex 
Male 16.48% 27.13% 22.04% 25.55% 37.23% 64.29% 22.37% 49.70% 

Female 83.52% 72.80% 77.96% 74.45% 62.77% 35.71% 77.61% 50.30% 

  Yes 1.47% 2.80% 2.74% 0.95% 3.19% 0.00% 2.19% 

N/A Disability No 55.87% 56.22% 51.66% 53.94% 51.06% 64.29% 54.88% 

  Prefer not  to say 0.11% 0.06% 0.47% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.16% 

  Unknown 42.55% 40.91% 45.13% 45.11% 45.74% 35.71% 42.77%   

Age 

16 to 24 5.42% 6.89% 1.04% - - - 4.50% 

N/A 

25 to 34 10.27% 24.02% 22.99% 13.88% - - 17.63% 

35 to 44 22.80% 17.99% 29.33% 28.71% 26.60% 7.14% 23.01% 

45 to 54 32.56% 27.56% 22.99% 37.54% 43.62% 35.71% 29.36% 

55 to 64 23.93% 20.30% 22.23% 17.98% 27.66% 57.14% 22.13% 

65+ 5.02% 3.17% 1.42% 1.89% 2.13% - 3.35% 

Religion or 
Belief 

Christianity 5.81% 10.30% 13.53% 19.56% 13.83% 35.71% 10.11% 37.30% 

Hinduism 3.67% 5.18% 3.12% 2.52% 1.06% - 3.92% 25.30% 

Islam 1.13% 2.07% 1.61% 0.63% - - 1.49% 12.50% 

Judaism 0.11% 0.37% 0.85% 0.63% 1.06% - 0.41% 4.40% 

Jainism 0.34% 0.61% 0.28% - - - 0.39% 2.17% 

Sikh 0.23% 0.67% 0.66% 1.26% 1.06% - 0.55% 1.20% 

Buddhism 0.11% 0.18% 0.19% - 1.06% - 0.16% 1.10% 

Zoroastrian - 0.06% - - - - 0.02% 0.07% 

Other 0.85% 1.10% 1.42% 0.32% - - 1.00% 0.26% 

No Religion/ 
Atheist 1.24% 4.09% 4.82% 8.83% 6.38% 7.14% 3.58% 

9.60% 

Unknown 86.51% 75.37% 73.51% 66.25% 75.53% 57.14% 78.36% 6.20% 

Sexual 
Orientation 

Heterosexual 9.65% 22.07% 23.94% 24.29% 30.85% 57.14% 18.39% 

N/A 

Gay Woman/ 
Lesbian - 0.12% 0.19% - - - 0.08% 

Gay Man - 0.18% 0.28% 0.95% - - 0.18% 

Bi-sexual 0.17% 0.24% 0.09% 0.63% 1.06% - 0.22% 

Prefer not  to say 0.62% 0.85% 1.23% 2.21% - - 0.92% 

Other 0.11% - 0.19% - - - 0.08% 

Unknown 89.45% 76.52% 74.08% 71.92% 68.09% 42.86% 80.12% 
Maternity/ 
Pregnancy in 
last 2 years 

Yes 1.86% 3.23% 9.93% 5.68% 2.13% 0.00% 4.31% 
N/A 

No 98.14% 96.77% 90.07% 94.32% 97.87% 100% 95.69% 

 

38



 

2.1 Workforce Profile (including schools) – Full and Part time 
 

  
Full time Part time 

Whole 
Council 

Harrow 
Community 

Data                          
2011 

Census 

2,507 2,387 4,894   

Ethnicity  

BAME 39.85% 46.63% 43.15% 57.75% 

White 52.93% 45.83% 49.47% 42.25% 

Unknown 7.22% 7.54% 7.38% 0.00% 

Sex 
Male 35.86% 8.21% 22.37% 49.70% 

Female 64.10% 91.79% 77.61% 50.30% 

Disability 

Yes 2.87% 1.47% 2.19% 

N/A 
No  54.89% 54.88% 54.88% 

Prefer not to say 0.28% 0.04% 0.16% 

Unknown 41.96% 43.61% 42.77% 

Age 

16 to 24 5.94% 2.97% 4.50% 

N/A 

25 to 34 24.65% 10.26% 17.63% 

35 to 44 22.06% 24.01% 23.01% 

45 to 54 26.41% 32.47% 29.36% 

55 to 64 19.07% 25.35% 22.13% 

65+ 1.83% 4.94% 3.35% 

Religion or 
Belief  

Christianity 13.56% 6.49% 10.11% 37.30% 

Hinduism 3.71% 4.15% 3.92% 25.30% 

Islam 2.23% 0.71% 1.49% 12.50% 

Judaism 0.52% 0.29% 0.41% 4.40% 

Jainism 0.32% 0.46% 0.39% 2.17% 

Sikh 0.80% 0.29% 0.55% 1.20% 

Buddhism 0.24% 0.08% 0.16% 1.10% 

Zoroastrian - 0.04% 0.02% 0.07% 

Other 1.32% 0.67% 1.00% 0.26% 

No Religion/ Atheist 5.54% 1.51% 3.58% 9.60% 

Unknown 71.76% 85.30% 78.36% 6.20% 

Sexual 
Orientation 

Heterosexual 24.77% 11.69% 18.39% 

N/A 

Gay Woman/Lesbian  0.08% 0.08% 0.08% 

Gay Man 0.32% 0.04% 0.18% 

Bi-sexual 0.32% 0.13% 0.22% 

Prefer not to say 1.20% 0.63% 0.92% 

Other 0.04% 0.13% 0.08% 

Unknown 73.27% 87.31% 80.12% 

Maternity/ 
Pregnancy in 
last 2 years 

Yes 3.31% 5.36% 4.31% N/A 

No 96.69% 94.64% 95.69% N/A 

 

 

  

39



 

Appendix 3 
 

Recruitment Council (Schools not included) 
This data relates only to recruitment carried out through Pertemps 
 

  Applied Shortlisted Appointed 

Ethnicity 

 2657 488 169 

BAME 62.25% 58.20% 49.70% 

White 22.96% 28.48% 34.32% 

Unknown 14.79% 13.32% 15.98% 

Sex 

Male 42.12% 
 

40.16% 
 

41.42% 
 

Female 55.44% 
 

58.20% 
 

56.80% 
 

Unknown 2.45% 
 

1.64% 
 

1.78% 
 

Disability 

Yes 1.62% 1.23% 1.78% 

No 
93.07% 

 
93.44% 

 
92.90% 

 

Prefer not to say/ 
unknown 

5.31% 
 

5.33% 
 

5.33% 
 

Age 

16 - 24 years 21.30% 18.03% 14.20% 

25 - 44 years 56.53% 51.23% 55.62% 

45 - 64 years 19.08% 27.46% 27.81% 

65 & over 0.38% 0.82% 0.00% 

Prefer not to say 2.67% 2.46% 2.37% 

Under 16 0.04% 0.00% 0.00% 

Religion  
or Belief 

Christianity 40.01% 
 

43.03% 
 

49.70% 
 

Hinduism 14.19% 
 

11.48% 
 

8.88% 
 

Islam 15.69% 
 

11.48% 
 

6.51% 
 

Judaism 0.98% 
 

1.84% 
 

2.96% 
 

Jainism 0.75% 
 

1.02% 
 

0.59% 
 

Sikh 2.75% 
 

2.87% 
 

3.55% 
 

Buddhism 1.09% 
 

0.82% 
 

0.59% 
 

Zoroastrian 
0.15% 

 
0.20% 

 
0.00% 

 

Other 3.31% 
 

2.66% 
 

1.18% 
 

No Religion/Atheist 15.51% 
 

19.06% 
 

21.30% 
 

Unknown 5.57% 
 

5.53% 
 

4.73% 
 

Sexual 
Orientation 

Heterosexual 86.15% 
 

91.80% 
 

92.90% 
 

Gay Woman/ Lesbian 0.41% 
 

0.61% 
 

0.59% 
 

Gay Man 1.09% 
 

1.43% 
 

1.18% 
 

Bi-sexual 1.99% 
 

0.61% 
 

0.59% 
 

Other 1.54% 
 

1.23% 
 

1.18% 
 

Unknown 8.81% 
 

4.30% 
 

3.55% 
 40



 

Pregnancy/ 
Maternity 

Yes 3.31% 
 

3.69% 
 

5.33% 
 

No 91.08% 
 

92.42% 
 

91.72% 
 

Unknown 5.61% 
 

3.89% 
 

 

 

 
 
 

  

41



 

 
 
 3.1 Redeployments 2016/17 (administered through Pertemps) 
 

  
  

Redeployment 
sought  

(all reasons) 
  73 employees 

Successful 
Redeployments 
  7 employees 

Not 
Redeployed  

  66 employees 
  
  

  BAME  64.38% 28.57% 62.12% 

Ethnicity White  20.55% 57.14% 19.70% 

  Unknown  15.07% 14.29% 18.18% 

Sex Male  41.1% 42.86% 39.40% 

  Female  58.90% 57.14% 60.60% 

  Yes  8.22% 0% 7.58% 

Disability No  68.49% 100% 68.18% 

  Unknown  23.29% 0% 24.24% 

  16 to 24  0% 0% 0% 

  25 to 34  12.32% 14.28% 12.12% 

Age 35 to 44  20.55% 0% 22.73% 

  45 to 54  27.40% 28.58% 24.24% 

  55 to 64  24.67% 14.28% 25.76% 

  65+  4.11% 0% 4.55% 

  Unknown  10.95% 42.86% 10.60% 

  Christianity  23.29% 0% 25.76% 

  Hinduism  12.33% 14.28% 12.12% 

  Islam  5.48% 14.28% 4.55% 

Religion Judaism  0% 0% 0% 

or Jainism 0% 0% 0% 

Belief Sikh  5.48% 0% 6.06% 

  Buddhism  0% 0% 0% 

  Zoroastrian  0% 0% 0% 

  Other  1.37% 0% 1.51% 

 No  
 

  

  Religion/Atheist  16.44% 0% 34.85% 

  Unknown  35.61% 71.44% 15.15% 

  Heterosexual  60.27% 42.86% 62.12% 

  
Gay 
Woman/Lesbian 

0% 0% 0% 

Sexual Gay Man 0% 0% 0% 

Orientation Bi-sexual 0% 0% 0% 

  Prefer not to say  2.74% 0% 0% 

  Other  0% 0% 0% 

  Unknown  36.99% 57.14% 37.88% 

Pregnancy/ Yes  4.11% 0% 4.55% 

Maternity  No  72.60% 57.14% 74.24% 
 in last          
2 years 

Unknown  
23.29% 42.86% 21.21% 

 

 

  

42



 

 

 

3.2. Maternity – Return to Work Rates – by Protected Characteristic 
 
 

    

Women 
due to 
return 

between                 
1 April 

2016 - 31 
March 
2017   

Women 
who 

returned 
to work 

for 
longer 
than                   

4 months   

Women 
who 

returned 
to work 
but left 
within                     

4 months    

Non 
returners 
following                   
maternity 

leave   

 
96 80 5 11 

Ethnicity BAME 37.50% 33.75% 80.00% 45.45% 

  White  54.17% 56.25% 20.00% 54.55% 

  Unknown 8.33% 10.00% - - 

  Yes 1.04% 1.25% - - 

Disability No 54.17% 48.75% 60.00% 90.91% 

  
Prefer not to 
say 

(inc in 
unknown) 

(inc in 
unknown) 

(inc in 
unknown) 

(inc in 
unknown) 

  Unknown 44.79% 50.00% 40.00% 9.09% 

  16 - 24  2.50% - - 2.08% 

Age 25 to 34 57.50% 40.00% 72.73% 58.33% 

  35 to 44 40.00% 60.00% 27.27% 39.58% 

  Christianity 8.33% 8.75% 20.00% - 

  Hinduism 1.04% 1.25% - - 

  Islam - - - - 

Religion Judaism - - - - 

or Belief Jainism     

  Sikh 3.13% 2.50% 20.00% - 

  Buddhism - - - - 

  Zoroastrian - - - - 

  Other 4.17% 3.75% - 9.09% 

  
No Religion/ 
Atheist 

- - - - 

  Unknown 83.33% 83.75% 60.00% 90.91% 

  Heterosexual 14.58% 12.50% 40.00% 18.18% 

Sexual 
Orientation 

Gay Woman/ 
Lesbian 

- - - - 

  Bi-sexual - - - - 

  
Prefer not to 
say 

- - - - 

  Other - - - - 

  Unknown 85.42% 87.50% 60.00% 81.82% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43



 

3.3  Leavers – by Protected Characteristic and Pay Band 
 

  

Ill Health 
Dismissal 

Red’ncy 
Comp  

Red’ncy 
Vol 

Dismissal 
(including 
probation) 

Resign’ion 
and other 

leavers 

All 
leavers 

Whole 
Council 

12 46 14 13 698 783 4,894 

Ethnicity  
BAME 33.33% 54.35% 50.00% 38.46% 35.67% 37.04% 43.15% 

White 58.33% 43.48% 50.00% 30.77% 56.59% 55.30% 49.47% 

Unknown 8.33% 2.17% - 30.77% 7.74% 7.66% 7.38% 

Sex 
Male 33.33% 28.26% 21.43% 69.23% 20.34% 21.84% 22.37% 

Female 66.67% 71.74% 78.57% 30.77% 79.66% 78.16% 77.61% 

Disability 

Yes 16.67% 4.35% 21.43% - 0.43% 1.28% 2.19% 

No  25.00% 30.43% - 76.92% 71.49% 67.18% 54.88% 

Unknown 58.33% 65.22% 78.57% 23.08% 28.08% 31.55% 42.93% 

Age 

16 to 24 - - - 23.08% 5.16% 4.98% 4.50% 

25 to 34 - 2.17% - 38.46% 30.52% 27.97% 17.63% 

35 to 44 16.67% 13.04% 21.43% 15.38% 23.50% 22.61% 23.01% 

45 to 54 41.67% 41.30% 14.29% 15.38% 19.77% 21.20% 29.36% 

55 to 64 41.67% 34.78% 42.86% 7.69% 15.19% 17.11% 22.13% 

65+ - 8.70% 21.43% - 5.87% 6.13% 3.35% 

Religion or 
Belief 

Christianity 16.67% 15.22% 7.14% 30.77% 8.88% 9.71% 10.11% 

Hinduism 8.33% 8.70% 7.14% - 1.43% 2.04% 3.92% 

Islam - - 7.14% - 0.86% 0.89% 1.49% 

Judaism - - - - 0.14% 0.13% 0.41% 

Jainism - - - - 0.14% 0.13% 0.39% 

Sikh - 2.17% - - 0.29% 0.38% 0.55% 

Buddhism - - - 7.69% 1.43% 1.40% 0.16% 

Zoroastrian - 2.17% - - 3.15% 2.94% 0.02% 

Other 75.00% 71.74% 78.57% 61.54% 83.67% 82.38% 1.00% 

No Religion/ 
Atheist 16.67% 15.22% 7.14% 30.77% 8.88% 9.71% 3.58% 

Unknown 8.33% 8.70% 7.14% - 1.43% 2.04% 78.36% 

Sexual 
Orientation 

Heterosexual 16.67% 28.26% 28.57% 38.46% 15.33% 16.73% 18.39% 

Gay Woman/ 
Lesbian - 2.17% - - 0.43% 0.51% 0.08% 

Gay Man - - - - 0.14% 0.13% 0.18% 

Bi-sexual - - - - 0.57% 0.51% 0.22% 

Prefer not to say - - - - 0.14% 0.13% 0.92% 

Other 83.33% 69.57% 71.43% 61.54% 83.38% 81.99% 0.08% 

Unknown 16.67% 28.26% 28.57% 38.46% 15.33% 16.73% 80.12% 

Maternity/ 
Pregnancy 

Yes - 2.17% 7.14% - 3.87% 3.70% 4.31% 

By Pay 
band 

1 58.33% 4.35% 57.14% 69.23% 35.24% 34.74%  

2 16.67% 36.96% 21.43% 23.08% 33.52% 33.08%  

3 25.00% 43.48% 21.43% 7.69% 24.36% 25.16%  

4 - 13.04% - - 4.44% 4.73%  

5 - 2.17% - - 2.44% 2.30%  

6 58.33% 4.35% 57.14% 69.23% 35.24% 34.74%  

 
 
 
 

 44



 

Appendix 4  
 
4.  Directorate Workforce Profiles 
 

4.1 Resources & Commercial Directorate 

  
  

  
  

Resources & 
Commercial 
Directorate 

Whole Council 

558 4,894 

  BAME 44.27% 43.15% 

Ethnicity White 42.29% 49.47% 

  Unknown 13.44% 7.38% 

Sex Male 21.68% 22.37% 

  Female 78.32% 77.61% 

Disability Yes 3.58% 2.19% 

 No 46.06% 54.88% 

 Prefer not to say - 0.16% 

 Unknown 50.36% 42.77% 

  16 to 24 3.76% 4.50% 

  25 to 34 17.92% 17.63% 

Age 35 to 44 23.66% 23.01% 

  45 to 54 31.36% 29.36% 

  55 to 64 19.35% 22.13% 

  65+ 3.94% 3.35% 

  Christianity 13.98% 10.11% 

  Hinduism 6.81% 3.92% 

  Islam 3.41% 1.49% 

Religion Judaism 0.18% 0.41% 

or Jainism 0.54% 0.39% 

Belief Sikh 2.33% 0.55% 

  Buddhism 0.18% 0.16% 

  Zoroastrian - 0.02% 

  Other 1.08% 1.00% 

  No Religion/ Atheist 8.42% 3.58% 

  Unknown 63.08% 78.36% 

  Heterosexual 27.06% 18.39% 

  Gay Woman/ Lesbian 0.18% 0.08% 

Sexual Gay Man 0.18% 0.18% 

Orientation Bi-sexual - 0.22% 

  Prefer not to say 0.72% 0.92% 

  Other - 0.08% 

  Unknown 71.86% 80.12% 

Pregnancy/ Yes 4.48% 4.31% 

 Maternity No 95.52% 95.69% 

45



 

4.2 People Services Directorate (including schools) 

   
  

  
  

People 
Services 

Directorate 
Whole Council 

3,509 4,894 

  BAME 45.00% 43.15% 

Ethnicity White 48.13% 49.47% 

  Unknown 6.87% 7.38% 

Sex Male 12.54% 22.37% 

  Female 87.46% 77.61% 

Disability Yes 1.54% 2.19% 

 No 60.07% 54.88% 

 Prefer not to say 0.03% 0.16% 

 Unknown 38.36% 42.77% 

  16 to 24 5.13% 4.50% 

  25 to 34 18.87% 17.63% 

Age 35 to 44 23.54% 23.01% 

  45 to 54 29.64% 29.36% 

  55 to 64 20.29% 22.13% 

  65+ 2.54% 3.35% 

  Christianity 7.50% 10.11% 

  Hinduism 3.16% 3.92% 

  Islam 0.74% 1.49% 

Religion Judaism 0.34% 0.41% 

or Jainism 0.43% 0.39% 

Belief Sikh 0.23% 0.55% 

  Buddhism 0.11% 0.16% 

  Zoroastrian 0.03% 0.02% 

  Other 0.77% 1.00% 

  No Religion/ Atheist 1.91% 3.58% 

  Unknown 84.78% 78.36% 

  Heterosexual 13.48% 18.39% 

  Gay Woman/ Lesbian 0.09% 0.08% 

Sexual Gay Man 0.06% 0.18% 

Orientation Bi-sexual 0.11% 0.22% 

  Prefer not to say 0.60% 0.92% 

  Other 0.09% 0.08% 

  Unknown 85.58% 80.12% 

Pregnancy/ Yes 4.84% 4.31% 

 Maternity No 95.16% 95.69% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

46



 

4.2.1 People Services Directorate (excluding schools) 

   
  

  
  

People 
Services 

Directorate 
Whole Council 

2052 4,894 

  BAME 42.54% 43.15% 

Ethnicity White 49.07% 49.47% 

  Unknown 8.38% 7.38% 

Sex Male 38.55% 22.37% 

  Female 61.45% 77.61% 

Disability Yes 4.53% 2.19% 

 No 44.25% 54.88% 

 Prefer not to say 0.34% 0.16% 

 Unknown 50.88% 42.77% 

  16 to 24 2.68% 4.50% 

  25 to 34 13.89% 17.63% 

Age 35 to 44 21.83% 23.01% 

  45 to 54 29.29% 29.36% 

  55 to 64 26.85% 22.13% 

  65+ 5.46% 3.35% 

  Christianity 18.52% 10.11% 

  Hinduism 5.95% 3.92% 

  Islam 3.02% 1.49% 

Religion Judaism 0.68% 0.41% 

or Jainism 0.49% 0.39% 

Belief Sikh 1.02% 0.55% 

  Buddhism 0.24% 0.16% 

  Zoroastrian - 0.02% 

  Other 1.85% 1.00% 

  No Religion/ Atheist 7.60% 3.58% 

  Unknown 60.62% 78.36% 

  Heterosexual 33.87% 18.39% 

  Gay Woman/ Lesbian 0.15% 0.08% 

Sexual Gay Man 0.44% 0.18% 

Orientation Bi-sexual 0.49% 0.22% 

  Prefer not to say 1.46% 0.92% 

  Other 0.05% 0.08% 

  Unknown 63.55% 80.12% 

Pregnancy/ Yes 3.80% 4.31% 

 Maternity No 96.20% 95.69% 

47



 

4.3 Community Directorate 

 

  
  

  
  

Community 
Directorate 

Whole Council 

781 4,894 

  BAME 35.21% 43.15% 

Ethnicity White 59.54% 49.47% 

  Unknown 5.25% 7.38% 

Sex Male 65.17% 22.37% 

  Female 34.83% 77.61% 

Disability Yes 4.10% 2.19% 

 No 37.39% 54.88% 

 Prefer not to say 0.77% 0.16% 

 Unknown 57.75% 42.77% 

  16 to 24 2.30% 4.50% 

  25 to 34 11.01% 17.63% 

Age 35 to 44 18.95% 23.01% 

  45 to 54 27.91% 29.36% 

  55 to 64 32.65% 22.13% 

  65+ 7.17% 3.35% 

  Christianity 18.44% 10.11% 

  Hinduism 5.38% 3.92% 

  Islam 3.33% 1.49% 

Religion Judaism 0.77% 0.41% 

or Jainism 0.13% 0.39% 

Belief Sikh 0.64% 0.55% 

  Buddhism 0.38% 0.16% 

  Zoroastrian - 0.02% 

  Other 1.92% 1.00% 

  No Religion/ Atheist 7.17% 3.58% 

  Unknown 61.84% 78.36% 

  Heterosexual 33.16% 18.39% 

  Gay Woman/ Lesbian - 0.08% 

Sexual Gay Man 0.51% 0.18% 

Orientation Bi-sexual 0.77% 0.22% 

  Prefer not to say 2.30% 0.92% 

  Other 0.13% 0.08% 

  Unknown 63.12% 80.12% 

Pregnancy/ Yes 1.66% 4.31% 

 Maternity No 98.34% 95.69% 

 

 

 

 

48



 

        3.4 Regeneration 

  
  

  
  

Regeneration 
and Planning 

Whole Council 

63 4,894 

  BAME 34.92% 43.15% 

Ethnicity White 57.14% 49.47% 

  Unknown 7.94% 7.38% 

Sex Male 39.68% 22.37% 

  Female 60.32% 77.61% 

Disability Yes 3.17% 2.19% 

 No 53.97% 54.88% 

 Prefer not to say 1.59% 0.16% 

 Unknown 41.27% 42.77% 

  16 to 24 1.59% 4.50% 

  25 to 34 23.81% 17.63% 

Age 35 to 44 34.92% 23.01% 

  45 to 54 19.05% 29.36% 

  55 to 64 20.63% 22.13% 

  65+ - 3.35% 

  Christianity 19.05% 10.11% 

  Hinduism 4.76% 3.92% 

  Islam 3.17% 1.49% 

Religion Judaism 1.59% 0.41% 

or Jainism - 0.39% 

Belief Sikh 1.59% 0.55% 

  Buddhism - 0.16% 

  Zoroastrian - 0.02% 

  Other 1.59% 1.00% 

  No Religion/ Atheist 7.94% 3.58% 

  Unknown 60.32% 78.36% 

  Heterosexual 30.16% 18.39% 

  Gay Woman/ Lesbian - 0.08% 

Sexual Gay Man 3.17% 0.18% 

Orientation Bi-sexual 1.59% 0.22% 

  Prefer not to say 4.76% 0.92% 

  Other - 0.08% 

  Unknown 60.32% 80.12% 

Pregnancy/ Yes 4.76% 4.31% 

 Maternity No 95.24% 95.69% 

 

 

 

 

49



 
 

Appendix 5 
 

2016/17 Paybands 

 

 

Payband Salary in £s 
Broadly equivalent to 

and will include 

Band 1 Up to 19,374 G1 to G3 

Band 2  19,375 - 31,371 G4 to G8 

Band 3  31,372 - 42,951 G9 to G11 

Band 4  42,952 - 61,992 MG1 – MG3 

Band 5  61,993 - 95,880 MG4 and D1 

Band 6 95,881 and above D2 and above 

   

 
 
G grades - Harrow pay spine 

 

50



51

Agenda Item 7
Pages 51 to 164



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

EMPLOYEE 

CONSULTATIVE FORUM 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

12th December 2017 

Subject: 

 

Response to report from Unison regarding 
‘Non-compliance of statutory responsibilities, 
failure to engage in the Environment and 
Communities Directorate’ 

Key Decision: 

 

No 
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Paul Walker – Corporate Director, 
Communities 
 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Graham Henson, Portfolio holder for the 
Environment 
 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Wards affected: 

 

N/A 

 
 

 

165

Agenda Item 8
Pages 165 to 170



\\harrow.gov.uk\dfs\homedrive\HinPatel\2017\Simon Baxter\Environment -Consultative Forum 12th Dec.doc 

  

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 

 

 
This report sets out the Council’s response to a report received from Unison 
entitled ‘Non-compliance of statutory responsibilities, failure to engage in the 
Environment and Communities Directorate’. The report was received on 5th 
October 2017 

 
For Information 

 

Section 2 – Report 

 
This report outlines the Council’s response to the Unison paper entitled ‘Non-
compliance of statutory responsibilities, failure to engage in the Environment 
and Communities Directorate’. The report was received on 5th October 2017.  
 
The Environmental Operations and Strategy teams operate within the wider 
Environment and Communities Directorate and consist of over 250 staff and 
managers. The teams deliver front line services including waste and recycling 
collection, the civic amenity site, street cleansing and grounds maintenance. 
The Strategy team supports delivery of front line services through co-
ordinating all policy and IT developments across the division and maintaining 
the links with West London Waste Authority and other key stakeholders. 
 
The restructure of Environment and Culture is a wider project that impacts the 
whole division; however the focus in this paper is on the Environmental 
Operations and Strategy Teams, reflecting the issues raised by Unison. 
 
 
1. Failure to comply with the council’s consultation policy and failure 

to offer redeployment to displaced employees at risk of redundancy.  
 
The consultation process followed during the restructure of Environmental 
Services has followed the Council’s policies and procedures and this has not 
resulted in any displaced employees being disadvantaged.  
 
The consultation was launched in February 2017 and involved a restructure of 
all levels of the management team to ensure it reflects the current needs of 
the service. A key aspect of the restructure was replacing the grade 8 Team 
Leader roles with new grade 8 Assistant Manager roles and a supporting 
Health and Safety Advisor.  
 

166



\\harrow.gov.uk\dfs\homedrive\HinPatel\2017\Simon Baxter\Environment -Consultative Forum 12th Dec.doc 

Following the initial launch of the consultation, extensive feedback was 
received from the trade unions through a special DJC held on 2nd March 
2017. This resulted in a number of amendments to the consultation and an 
extended consultation period through to 18th April 2017. Interviews for the 
Assistant Manager posts took place in June 2017. Those that were successful 
in securing a new post were appointed. Those staff that were unable to 
secure a new post were informed that they would stay in their current role, 
subject to a  the outcome of a formal HR process involving one of the affected 
staff that needed to be resolved before the process could be completed. This 
was completed in late October.  This delay ensured that there were sufficient 
managers within the service areas to maintain front line delivery – if the 
Assistant Manager recruitment had been completed to the original timescale 
then this would have has a significant detrimental effect on service delivery. 
The extension to the restructure timescale and reasons were relayed to staff 
and updates were communicated through team meetings.    
 
Unison’s submission states that there has been a change in the original 
structure without consultation.  There has been no formal change in the new 
structure. 
 
During the consultation, the two grade 10 Civic Amenity Site Assistant 
Managers both decided to leave the council while the restructure was 
ongoing, leaving two vacant posts.  As an interim position, it has been 
decided to recruit into one of these posts while consideration is given to 
impact of these posts on the wider structure. This reflects the Council’s 
Recruitment and Selection Procedure, which requires ‘Managers are 
expected to conduct a review of each post as it becomes vacant - whether it 
needs to exist in its current form, whether changes are required, or whether it 
needs to exist at all’.  This was discussed with Unison on 22nd August to gain 
initial feedback. If it is decided to proceed and change the structure at the 
civic amenity site then this would be undertaken through the correct formal 
processes and procedures. 
 
One of the Assistant Manager posts within civic amenity was advertised in 
September with only one internal application received, and then subsequently 
withdrawn. The post has been re-advertised (internally only) in early 
November, ensuring it is available for either of the two redeployees within the 
service to apply for. Additionally, the vacant Health and Safety Advisor role 
has been re-advertised, making a second post available for the redeployees 
to apply for. The council’s redeployment advisor (through PerTemps) has 
been engaged and is working directly with the employees. 

 
 
2. Failure to enact a special DJC, failure to respond to TU letters within 

an agreed timeframe.    
 
A request for a DJC was received from Unison on 7th September. The DJC 
would normally be attended by the Corporate Director of Resources, however 
the post was vacant at the time so the request was directed to the Chief 
Executive. The Chief Executive’s Office responded on 18th September, 
indicating that the Director of Resources could attend in his place.  
 

167



\\harrow.gov.uk\dfs\homedrive\HinPatel\2017\Simon Baxter\Environment -Consultative Forum 12th Dec.doc 

Unison indicated that this would not be an acceptable substitution and 
subsequently the request for DJC was overridden by a request for an ECF, 
received on 31st October.  
 
In addition to the requests for a DJC and ECF, there were various letters 
submitted to managers within the service area relating to specific concerns. 
Responses were issued to each of the letters, offering face to face 
discussions on each occasion.   
 
 
3. Breaking the council’s code of conduct.  
 
Specific allegations relating to conduct should be addressed through 
performance management processes. It is not clear from Unison’s report how 
the code of conduct has been broken; if specific details are provided then this 
can be investigated through the correct processes.   
 
 
4. Number of agency drivers in waste services   

 
The waste and recycling service has been reliant on agency staff to cover 
vacant roles over a long term period. These agency staff currently cover 
between 5 and 7 drivers and 12 to 15 loaders within the service each day. 
This represents around 20% of the overall workforce. In many cases the 
agency staff are employed for long periods, mitigating the challenges of 
reliance on agency workers, however it is recognised that this issue needs to 
be addressed as the service will run more effectively with a workforce 
predominantly consisting of full time staff and relying on agency workers for 
seasonal and day to day flexibility.  
 
The use of agency workers within the service area is subject to an ongoing 
process of review as part of a wider workforce strategy project.  The Chief 
Executive has met with Unison and the Director of Environment and Culture 
on two separate occasions in October to review and agree actions.  Care is 
being taken to ensure that budgets are reviewed and the correct numbers of 
staff are employed, taking into consideration aspirations to take on a new 
batch of apprentices in early 2018. 
 
Recruitment of 5 drivers and 13 loaders has recently been approved and 
recruitment into these posts will be completed before Christmas 2017. This 
will assist with improving standards of health and safety, quality of work and 
reducing missed collections.   
 

 
5. Payments of market supplements to senior staff and ‘golden 

handshakes’  
 

There are no managers within Environmental Services receiving market 
supplements nor any ‘Golden Handshakes’. 
 
 
 

168



\\harrow.gov.uk\dfs\homedrive\HinPatel\2017\Simon Baxter\Environment -Consultative Forum 12th Dec.doc 

Summary 
 
The service areas within Environmental Operations have been through a long 
period of change and uncertainty. It is recognised that this creates challenges 
for staff and managers within the service and that there are opportunities to 
improve front line delivery of services. 
 
There have however been significant steps forwards in recent months and 
these are leading to improvements in the services that will continue in to the 
new year; these include: 
 

 The project to upgrade the Bartec IT system is progressing well and is 
set to go live in January 2018, this will ensure collections crews have 
access to accurate information through the in-cab system and will 
significantly improve processing for garden waste collections, resolving 
missed bins and delivering containers.  
 

 The restructure of front line management, including Assistant 
Managers, is progressing well and most staff are in the new posts. 
Recruitment into the remaining posts is ongoing, the two Operational 
Manager posts have been filled and the staff will join in the new year. 
Recruitment of staff into the Strategy section of the division has been 
completed, allowing for greater support of front line services. 
 

 A renewed emphasis on health and safety is delivering meaningful 
improvements on the ground, including new induction training, an 
active programme of crew inspections and reintroduction of Safety 
Circles to include front line staff in safety management. 

 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 

 

 on behalf of the* 
Name: Dawn Calvert. Chief Financial Officer 
Date: 04/12/17  

 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 

 
 

Contact:  Simon Baxter – Director of Environment and Culture 

          Simon.Baxter@harrow.gov.uk 
 

169

mailto:Simon.Baxter@harrow.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



171

Agenda Item 9
Pages 171 to 178



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

EMPLOYEES’ 

CONSULTATIVE FORUM 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

12th December 2017 

Subject: 

 

Response to an Employees’ Side Report on 
Unilateral Changes to Role Profiles and the 
undermining of the Recognition Agreement. 
 

Key Decision: 

 
 
 

No 
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Tom Whiting – Corporate Director Resources 
and Commercial 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Kiran Ramchandani 
Portfolio Holder - Performance, Corporate 
Resources & Customer Service 

 
 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 
 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

No 
 

Wards affected: 

 

N/A 

Enclosures: 

 

None 
 

 

179

Agenda Item 10
Pages 179 to 186



\\data15\users$\c-jkitching\ECF\ECF report - Role Profiles.doc 

  

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 

 

 
This report sets out the Council’s response to a report received from UNISON 
entitled ‘Unilateral Changes to Role Profiles and the undermining of the 
Recognition Agreement’. The report was received on 31st October 2017. 

 
For Information 

 

Section 2 – Report 

 
This report outlines the Council’s response to the UNISON paper, addressing 
the issues raised and supplying additional information where necessary.  
 
 
2.1 Unilateral changes to contractual terms and conditions 
 
The report from Employee’s side refers to lack of meaningful consultation and 
negotiation with details of the consultation undertaken by Human Resources 
in the chronology and in appendices 1 and 2, beginning with consultation at 
CJC meeting on 18th July.  
 
On 30th October and email was sent to UNISON from the Employee and 
Customer Relations Manager to provide further  clarification on the changes 
to recruitment working practices as it was apparent from the content of the 
document submitted at Appendix 2 in the UNISON report that further clarity 
was required. This assumption was confirmed by the submission of the 
UNISON report to this forum. The salient issues conveyed were; 
 
 

 The changes proposed are concerned with improving processes and 
the experience for both recruiting managers and candidates.  

 

 Candidates can complete the Harrow application form quickly using 
their existing C.V and can review alongside their personal statement 
before applying. Alternatively they can complete the application form. 
This means the process has no impact on Harrow managers and still 
maintains ‘blind recruitment’. 
 

 There is no intention to undermine, manipulate or erode the GLPC job 
evaluation process or the application of the process in Harrow. There 
are no changes to job evaluation. 

180



\\data15\users$\c-jkitching\ECF\ECF report - Role Profiles.doc 

 
 

To provide clarity, the table below summarises all the changes between the 
current arrangements and the new proposed arrangements. 
 

Ref Subject Current arrangements Proposed arrangements 

1 Recruitment Two role profile templates. 
One for posts graded 
above G11, the other for 
posts graded under G11. 
No supporting guidance  

One role profile template 
with guidance to be 
available. Information from 
previous versions of role 
profiles can be used to 
populate the new template. 
The blank template is one 
page but will expand 
depending on the content 
of the role. 

2 Recruitment Generic duties contained 
in both role profiles 

Generic duties are listed in 
a separate document. The 
role profile therefore 
focuses on specific 
requirements which are 
assessed in the selection 
process. 

3 Recruitment Specific duties are 
selected from the role 
profiles to be assessed 
using the application, 
testing (where appropriate) 
and at interview. 

Knowledge skills and duties 
are now included in the role 
profile to cover the 
selection criteria, focusing 
on what is required to 
effectively undertake the 
duties of the role. 

4 Recruitment Behavioural indicators not 
used. 

A Behavioural indicators 
document has been 
produced to assist 
candidates to complete 
applications. This 
document is not part of the 
role profile 

5 Recruitment Application form and set 
questions. 

A CV can be used by the 
recruitment system to 
populate the application 
form with preview 
functionality.  The 
application form can still be 
used. There is also the 
facility to ask set questions. 

6 Recruitment Mandatory one day 
classroom course for 
managers. Half of the day 
covers the policy and 
recruitment legislation, the 
other half day covers 
recruitment practicalities 

A mandatory one day 
course focusing on the 
skills required and the 
recruitment processes. e.g. 
how to produce role 
profiles, how to shortlist. 
Practice interviews and 

181



\\data15\users$\c-jkitching\ECF\ECF report - Role Profiles.doc 

questioning techniques are 
included. 

7 Job 
evaluation 

Role profiles used for job 
evaluation 

No change. Role profiles 
used for job evaluation 

 
 
Human Resources have consulted on the changes which focus on, 
streamlining the process and improving the candidate and manager 
experience. The information provided to date explains the rationale for the 
changes supported by the above summary. 

 
The changes are also in line with the July 2016 ACAS Guide – Recruiting 
Staff which states that ‘an employer should consider:  
 
• key tasks, skills, attributes, behaviours, values, knowledge and experience 

required for the role’:  
 
 
2.2. Undermining of the Recognition Agreement 
 
The UNISON report  states that the actions of Human Resources signify the 
undermining of the union’s Recognition Agreement with the Council and yet a 
further failure by HR ( operated by Bucks CC) to engage  with UNISON. The 
direct intervention of this forum is requested to return this issue to the 
negotiating table, reversing the decision to enact the changes, with a formal 
apology from HR and a written commitment to abide by the recognition 
agreement. 
 
Human Resources believe that the recognition agreement has been followed 
(Section 15 Consultation).  
 
Harrow Council will consult on the following issues, through the DJC or CJC, 
as appropriate:   
 

 Issues arising from proposals to change working practices and 
procedures; 

 Issues arising from the introduction or implementation of Council 
policy; 

 Issues concerning the future development or progress of specific 
items including personnel policies, practices and procedures; 

 
The changes made to the recruitment process require consultation but are not 
covered by Section 16 – Negotiation. This section states that Harrow Council 
will negotiate and reach agreement, through the DJC or CJC on all issues 
pertaining to terms and conditions of employment affecting staff. 
 
The changes to the recruitment process are not changes to terms and 
conditions of employment affecting staff.  The Job Evaluation process is not 
being changed. Several of the changes focus on external candidates in the 
recruitment process who are not yet or may never become Harrow Council 
employees.  
 

182



\\data15\users$\c-jkitching\ECF\ECF report - Role Profiles.doc 

 
 

Current situation 
 
The changes to the process have not yet been implemented, following the 
submission of the UNISON report and will require changes to the HR Intranet 
site. 
 

Risk Management Implications 
 
No changes made to working practices that would place the Council at risk 
 

Legal Implications 
 
None as Management has complied with the Council’s procedures. 
 

Financial Implications 
 
No financial implications as the recruitment processes and job evaluation 
processes are undertaken within existing resources. 
 

Equalities implications / Public Sector Equality Duty 
 
None as the recognised job evaluation procedure is unaffected. 
 

Council Priorities 
 
The Council’s vision: 
 
Working Together to Make a Difference for Harrow  
 

 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 

 

 
 

   
 

Name: Dawn Calvert x  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date: 16/11/2017 

   

 
 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 

 
 

Contact: 

183



\\data15\users$\c-jkitching\ECF\ECF report - Role Profiles.doc 

 
John Kitching 
Head of Employee and Customer Relations 
Human Resources 
Community Directorate 
John.kitching@harrow.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Background Papers:  None 
.

184

mailto:John.kitching@harrow.gov.uk


\\data15\users$\c-jkitching\ECF\ECF report - Role Profiles.doc 

  
 

185



This page is intentionally left blank



187

Agenda Item 11
Pages 187 to 198



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



REPORT FOR: EMPLOYEES’ 

CONSULTATIVE FORUM 

Date of Meeting: 
12 December 2017 

Subject: 
Employees’ Side Report on: ‘Failure’ 
submitted by Unison 

Key Decision: 
No 

 
Responsible Officer: 

 
Paul Walker – Corporate Director Community 

Portfolio Holder: 
Councillor Glen Hearnden 
Portfolio Holder - Housing & Employment  
 

Exempt: 
No 

Enclosures: 
none 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

199

Agenda Item 12
Pages 199 to 202



Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 

 

Management response to Employees’ Side Report from Unison entitled 
‘Failure’. 

 

 

Recommendations: 
None 

 

 

 

Section 2 – Report 

Introductory paragraph 
 

This report provides a response to the Employees’ Side Report confirms that 
the appropriate actions have been taken by Management in consultation with 
Human Resources and Legal Services. 

 
 

Background 
 

The Employees’ Side Report alleges failure on the part of Management in 
dealing with two separate cases relating to employees of the Housing Service 
and suggests that the Divisional Director and his management team should 
attend training to understand an employee’s rights at work. 

 

Response 
 

It is not appropriate for individual case work to be discussed at ECF as this is 
outside of the terms of reference of the Forum. Discussing casework at the 
ECF could also compromise section 6.1 of the Grievance Procedure which 
states that ‘Information disclosed during the process must be treated with 
sensitively and confidentiality’. 

 
 

These cases have been reasonably handled in line with the correct internal 
processes and will continue to be until all internal processes are exhausted. 

 
 
 

Legal Implications 

200



None as Management has complied with the Council’s Grievance procedures. 
 

Financial Implications 
 

None. 
 

Equalities implications / Public Sector Equality Duty 
 

None. 
 

 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 

 

 

 

Name:…Dawn Calvert…………. 

 

 

x 

 

 

Chief Financial Officer 

Date: ……15/11/2017…………….. 
  

 

 

 

 

 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 

 

Contact: 
 

Nick Powell 
Divisional Director – Housing 
Housing Services 
Community Directorate 
Nick.Powell@harrow.gov.uk 
Internal: 2998 
External: 020 8424 1998 

 
 
 

Background Papers: None 
. 

201

mailto:Nick.Powell@harrow.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

203

Agenda Item 14
Pages 203 to 204



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Annual Equality in Employment Monitoring Report for 1 April 2016 - 31 March 2017
	Harrow Equalities Report 2016-17 appendix 1 FINAL
	Annual equalities report 16-17 data appendix 2 FINAL

	7 Non compliance of Statutory Responsibilities, Failure to engage in the  Environment & Communities Directorate
	8 Management Response: Non compliance of Statutory Responsibilities, Failure to engage in the  Environment & Communities Directorate
	9 Harrow Unison LG Branch Report On Unilateral Changes to Role Profiles & The Undermining of the Recognition Agreement
	10 Management Response: Harrow Unison LG Branch Report On Unilateral Changes to Role Profiles & The Undermining of the Recognition Agreement
	11 Failure in the Housing Directorate Senior Management Team
	12 Management Response: Failure in the Housing Directorate Senior Management Team
	14 Non compliance of Statutory Responsibilities, Failure to engage in the  Environment & Communities Directorate



